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Chairperson’s Statement
Mr. Pat Dolan, Chairman

Introduction

| have had the privilege of being the Board Chairperson since 2019. The Board is ably
assisted by five sub committees which ensures that all aspects of the organization is
analyzed and discussed before a final decision is made by the Board Directors. The
North West Hospice Board recognizes the importance of transparency and
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements. These five sub committees have been invaluable
in supporting this work with each subcommittee represented by Board Directors with skills in the area.
Each Board Director gives their expertise and time free of charge and meets as a group five times a year
and more frequently with input to subcommittees. The five subcommittees are; Board and
Development, Human Resources, Finance & Audit, Quality & Safety, IT systems & Hardware.

The Board also facilitated the development of a Strategy for the period 2021-2023 which included 11
core objectives. One of the key objectives is “to ensure that the organization is governed and managed
in accordance with best practice and in compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements”.
Accordingly | wish to record my sincere appreciation to all the Board Directors for their continuing
commitment to providing a quality service to our patients in the local community. | would like to
particularly acknowledge a sincere thank you to James Callaghan and Aisling Barry who gave tremendous
service to North West Hospice and the Board over a nine year period and who retired from the Board in
November 2021 following the maximum nine year term.

2021

In 2021, despite the challenges of COVID, the Hospice continued to provide the full range of palliative
care services both at an inpatient unit level, within the Community and to the local acute hospital, Sligo
University Hospital despite the significant challenges faced by the staff. | would like to record my
appreciation on behalf of all the Board Directors to all staff and to commend the Operational
Management Committee, the nursing, medical, Allied Health professionals, Admin as well as all the
support staff for consistently delivering on a quality service with great compassion and expertise. | would
also like to commend the fundraising team for a very successful year and the local community for your
generosity. | would like to acknowledge the additional funding provided by HSE in 2021 which lessened
the dependency on fundraising income. The Board is committed to using the additional funding to
further develop and improve our services. | would also like to thank the HSE CHO1 management team
for continuing to facilitate a very strong working relationship with North West Hospice in 2021.

Conclusion
In conclusion, | am delighted to report that the new capital build is included in the national HSE capital
plan. We had hoped that the new 12 bedded inpatient unit would have progressed further at this stage
however it was delayed due to COVID. The plans required review to include the learning from the COVID
experience.

The Hospice and the Board are excited for 2022 and progressing further with all the objectives in our
Strategic Plan. Thank you gain to our loyal supporters for your continued support.
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Hospice Manager’s Statement
Ms. Nuala Ginnelly, Hospice Manager

Winston Churchill once said “to improve is to change; to be perfect is to

change often”. For North West Hospice, 2021 was another year of very

positive change despite the presence of the COVID pandemic.

We started the year with a great sense of optimism as the much anticipated
COVID vaccination for frontline staff started to be rolled out. While continuing to
adhere to COVID restrictions throughout 2021 and successfully registering NO transmission of COVID in our
inpatient unit, we as a service are particularly proud to have protected our vulnerable patients from COVID
while continuing the importance of family visits and enabling the admission of knowingly COVID positive
patients to the unit. | would like to commend all our staff whose knowledge, expertise and flexibility with
rosters ensured that we were able to maintain our services at all times even during challenging periods of
staff absenteeism due to high levels of COVID transmission in the local community.

While managing COVID continued to dominate in 2021, delivering on our 3 year Strategic Plan 2021-2023
was also a top priority. All 11 core objectives were progressed in 2021 and is referred to in detail in the final
pages of the report. In summary, further progress was made in advancing our new inpatient unit. The final
stage of design was completed. We are very happy and excited to progress to the next stage. We hope that
with HSE approval that the tender process will commence in mid-2022.The project’s progress has been
delayed due to COVID however this delay provided the opportunity to review and amend the final design
from our COVID experience. In 2021, we further developed our organizational structure to ensure that the
hospice is consistently governed and managed in accordance with best practice and in compliance with all
regulatory and statutory requirements, another core objective in our Strategic Plan. Our governance
relationship with the HSE strengthened again in 2021 as we continue to work in partnership, and we
successfully recruited additional clinical and administrative staff. Towards the latter part of 2021, a
recruitment process commenced for a dedicated Director of Nursing (DON) for North West Hospice. This is
the first time in North West hospice’s history to have a dedicated DON in post. This is another exciting
development in 2021 as demands for our service and complexities in caseloads increases. | would like to
acknowledge the great leadership of Ms. Marion Ryder, our current DON for SUH and NWH and ADON Ms.
Catherine Regan and Jacinta Kelly (who replaced Catherine as ADON in August 2021) especially in focusing
on patient safety throughout the COVID pandemic and the HSE cyber-attack. This leadership is very much
supported by our 3 Consultants in Palliative Medicine Dr. Anna Cleminson, Clinical Lead, Dr. Cathryn Bogan
and Dr. Deirdre Finnerty who not only were role models for the service in the way that the COVD restrictions
were implemented but also led with a great sense of compassion recognizing the importance of family visits
at all times during the pandemic. Our volunteering programme on our clinical site gradually returned in
mid-2021 focusing on reception cover out of hours. This service was greatly missed in 2020 and would like
to commend our volunteers who agreed to return to a clinical setting adhering to the COVID restrictions
and regulation. The volunteers not only covered our reception out of hours but were also very proactive in
screening all visitors to the Hospice. This work freed up very valuable clinical time during periods of reduced
clinical staff.

“Financial sustainability of North West Hospice as an organization and of its services to people with life-
limiting illness” remains another key core objective in 2021. In 2020 our fundraising programme was
decimated overnight with all events cancelled and our Charity shops impacted for long periods. In 2021,
many of these restrictions remained in place yet we recorded our most successful NWH led fundraising
event, our Memorial walk in April 2021, which took place virtually. | would like to acknowledge our loyal
supporters and the fundraising team in achieving and surpassing our fundraising target in 2021 despite the
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COVID restrictions. | would like to especially acknowledge our volunteers who returned to the charity shop
in 2021. Their support ensured that the Charity shop registered another successful year. The Charity shop
in Carrick on Shannon regrettably did not re open in 2021 however our Charity shop in Sligo continues to
thrive with volunteers from Carrick on Shannon shop also volunteering for Sligo and supporting our
fundraising events (Further details on fundraising and the charity shop is documented later in the report).
| would also like to acknowledge Ocean FM for their support in the successful operational management by
NWH of Radio Bingo. This source of revenue stream greatly helped our income generation in 2021. This
could not exist without the support of Ocean FM.

I would like to acknowledge our partners and largest contributor to our funding, the HSE. The HSE
committed to additional recurring funding in 2020 which has reduced our overdependence on fundraising
income to provide core services. This additional funding and fundraising income ensures that we can
develop our services now and into the future to enable us to respond and meet the growing demand for
our services which is very evident in the ongoing increase in referrals each year, while also continuing to
deliver the highest quality of care in line with national and international best standards. | would like to also
acknowledge the huge support that the HSE team locally and nationally has been in ensuring that the
Hospice received and continue to receive up to date information, protocols, public health recommendations
etc. on COVID and for ensuring that we had adequate supply of PPE. | would also like to acknowledge the
support of the HSE IT services who prioritized NWH during the HSE Cyber-attack. This support was and
remains invaluable and demonstrates the very strong positive working relationship between the Hospice
and our HSE colleagues. | would like to commend our admin team, led by our Admin Manager, Dee Henry
who supported the clinical team during 2021 and especially during this challenging period. | would like to
acknowledge the great support of Mr. John Hayes who retired in 2021 from his role as Chief Officer for
CHO1 in 2021. The harmonious working relationship that continues to exist between the Hospice
Board/Hospice Management and CHO1, HSE Management and their Community Care Management Team
continues to be facilitated by Mr. Dermot Monaghan, Act Chief Officer CHO1 and Ms. Emma Ball, General
Manager for Primary care, Sligo / Leitrim. | would like to thank them for their guidance, management and
prioritization of palliative care services in the North West.

Finally, | wish to extend a very warm “thank you” to all our Board Directors. They have remained a constant
support to myself as Hospice Manager and also to the Operational management committee throughout All
the Board Directors have specific skill sets which they give free of charge to the Hospice. These skill sets are
very evident from the Board sub committees that informs the overall Board management decisions. |
particularly want to acknowledge their availability for meetings often at very short notice in the last 12
months. The Board Directors meetings could not be facilitated face to face throughout the COVID pandemic
however this did not in any way reduce their availability for virtual meetings which they engaged with very
successfully. Sadly two very influential and committed Board Directors retired after their term of 9 years
came to an end last November, Dr. Jim Callaghan and Ms. Aisling Barry. | would like to acknowledge their
great work over the 9 years and thank them for all their guidance, time and expertise. NWH was fortunate
to secure a new Board Director in 2021, Mr. Noel Mc Loughlin, an engineer by profession with extensive
experience in construction and project management which is very opportune as we approach the tendering
process for our new Inpatient unit.

Finally In presenting this report, | wish to acknowledge all that contributed in any way to North West
Hospice during 2021, the dedicated Board of Management, staff and volunteers, the HSE especially CHO1
and SUH ,TUSLA, local community groups i.e. Sligo Leader, local County Council, Sligo Social Services, Sligo
cancer support center, All Ireland Institute Palliative Care, Together for Hospice , Voluntary Hospice /Service
providers group, the local community and each patient and family that we have the privilege to care for.

As we approach 2022, we look forward with a great sense of opportunity as we continue to build on the
progress of previous years, with our patients and families at the center of all we do.
“Don’t be afraid to give up the good to go for the great” (John D Rockefeller),

4



< Annual Report | 2021

North West
Hospice

Our Services

We provide specialist palliative care with compassion for those living with life-limiting illness
in our communities in Sligo, Leitrim, South Donegal and West Cavan — a catchment area of
approximately 110,000 persons. All our care is provided free of charge to patients and their
families.

Our Integrated services is provided through

Our 8-bed Inpatient Unit — this Unit has eight beds (three single rooms and a five-bed
area) where people are cared for by a multi-disciplinary team for a range of reasons such
as symptom control, respite, as well as end-of-life care. Our team includes specialist
palliative consultants, medical, nursing, social work, occupational therapy and
physiotherapy staff. We also provide pastoral care, complimentary therapies, and a
wide range of volunteer services. In 2021, following advice from HSE Infection
Prevention control, our bed compliment reduced to 7 beds to facilitate adherence to
social distancing while we cared for COVID positive patients.

Our Community Palliative Care Team working across the North-West — we visit patients
in their own homes or other care settings such as nursing homes or community
hospitals. This team of Clinical Nurse Specialists, a social worker and a doctor work very
closely with the patient’s GP and Public Health Nurse to provide care to the patient.

Our Hospital Palliative Care Team based in Sligo University Hospital - provides palliative
care to patients at Sligo University Hospital and their families and provides support to
the hospital’s medical and nursing teams. The Team provides a seamless link in the flow
of care between the hospital, the hospice In-Patient Unit and Community Palliative Care,
assisting patients and their families to make the most appropriate decisions according
to their individual care needs.

Our Social Work service — Social workers are an integral part of the palliative care
multi- disciplinary team. The team provides psychosocial and emotional support to
patients and their families who are receiving palliative care service at home or in the
Inpatient unit. The social work team also provides a bereavement support and
advice to those who's loved one died under the care of North West Hospice
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Our Specialist Education Support service —

Bereavement

N

we recognize the importance of ensuring the
continuous professional development of our
staff, and our activities include monthly
education sessions for staff, learning and

sharing from practical examples of clinical
practice, and the development of policies,
procedures and guidelines related to service

quality.
woHumble

Our Volunteer Programme — our Vibrant gy
volunteers provide essential support in Passiorsts el RS
areas such as reception cover, holistic VU lu ntee rs
care (massage, music, reflexology, etc.), 4h ] A8

o . . FIS -HELFF“L’hJiFtHEh.;
and driving, fundraising, charity shop mETHﬂI}EHTFULm
assistants other activities Respectab

The services provided by North West Hospice are highly integrated, and our
Bereavement, Education, Spiritual and Volunteer supports are integral to our specialist
palliative care service. The diagram (pictured right) illustrates the integrated nature of
what we do, all of it centered on the needs of our patients and their families.
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Mission, Vision & Values

Mission

Vision

access services.

Compassion:

Wedemonstrate
the utmost care
and compassion

Values

Excellence:

we invest in learning
and development,
strivingfor excellence
in all wedo

The mission of North West Hospice is to provide specialist care with
compassion for those living with life-limiting illness in our community.

Our vision is to be at the center of palliative care services in the North
West, working to ensure that everyone who needs palliative care can

Accountability:

we aim to achieve the
highest standards of
governance and
integrity
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Service Statistics and Staffing
1.1 Service statistics
New Referrals
2011 2012 2013 2014 | 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
429 413 466 502 528 579 609 673 682 686 689
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Referrals to Community Palliative Care Team

450
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0
2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
Community Palliative Care Service
New Re- Discharges | Deaths CNS Total Visits
referrals | referrals visits
2015 324 38 79 235 2537 2883
2016 303 41 64 227 2256 2424
2017 335 37 66 275 2210 2361
2018 327 55 78 274 2034 2218
2019 313 94 107 274 2166 2298
2020 346 43 62 308 1391 1530
2021 374 40 69 303 1827 2037
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Hospital Palliative Care referrals

400
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50
0
2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020
Hospital Palliative Care Service
New Re- Discharges | Deaths CNS Total Visits
referrals | referrals visits
2015 372 189 456 136 5310 5343
2016 391 166 377 150 3935 4719
2017 474 211 537 165 2150 2829
2018 479 279 579 162 3079 5596
2019 503 296 620 124 2589 3832
2020 442 191 496 140 2396 3586
2021 467 130 524 154 2073 3339
Inpatient Unit Palliative Care Service
New Re- Discharges Deaths
referrals referrals
2015 133 92 117 120
2016 158 55 66 129
2017 146 30 50 132
2018 174 22 43 161
2019 178 25 30 172
2020 157 88 23 152
2021 159 90 30 141

10

2022



< Annual Report | 2021

North West
Hospice

1.2 Total Staffing in North West Hospice

Positions WTE
Administration 12
Community Relations 3
Charity Shop 2
Volunteer Coordinator 0.5
Medical Staff 6
Nursing Staff 38
Social Work 2
Cleaning/ Catering 2
Total 65.5
Note *Not all staff work full time hours
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Structures and Governance

North West Hospice is a registered charity and a company limited by guarantee. It is governed
by a Board of Directors. Our Board is responsible for corporate governance and works closely
with our management team to deliver our vision, mission and strategic objectives. All our
Directors are volunteer members who generously contribute their experience, knowledge,
and resources to ensure that North West Hospice is effectively run.

The Board of Directors of North West Hospice is:

Chairperson Mr. Pat Dolan
Retired Senior HSE Manager

Vice Chairperson Ms. Siobhan O Dowd
Senior Manager, Accenture

Other Directors Mr. Declan Hegarty

Solicitor
Mr. George Chadda

Communications & Chartered Engineer
Mr. Daniel Browne

Commercial Manager
Ms. Mary Curran

Retired Director of Public Health Nursing, HSE
Mr. Noel Scott

Retired HSE Manager
Dr. Fiona Quinn

General Practitioner
Mr. John Mc Elhinney

Quality & Safety Manager, HSE
Mr. Shane Ward

Chartered Accountant
Mr. Hubert Mc Hugh

Retired Psychiatric Nurse
Ms. Susanne Kerins

Head of Marketing, Cora Systems
Mr. Noel Mc Loughlin

Engineer

12
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Retirement from the Board in 2021

Dr. Jim Callaghan, 7®" November

Ms. Aisling Barry, 7™ November

New appointment to Board
Mr. Noel Mc Loughlin, 29t April.

The Governance and oversight of the Board is supported by the following sub- committees:

Board
Development

subcommittee

Chairperson:
Noel Scott

Siobhan
O Dowd

Susanne Kerins

Declan Hegarty

Human
Resource
subcommittee

Chairperson:
Mary Curran

Daniel Browne

Hubert McHugh

Noel Scott
Nuala Ginnelly

(Hospice
Manager)

Finance and Audit
subcommittee

Chairperson:
Shane Ward

Pat Dolan

George Chadda

Noel Mc Loughlin

Nuala Ginnelly
(Hospice Manager)

Georgina Meehan
(Finance Manager)

IT Oversight Committee
Chairperson

Nuala Ginnelly

Dee Henry, IT project
Lead.

George Chadda

Pat Dolan

Jacinta Kelly, ADON
Dr. Cathryn Bogan,
Consultant in Palliative
Medicine.

Quality and
Safety
subcommittee

Chairperson
Mr. John
McElhinney

Dr Fiona Quinn
Mary Curran

Nuala Ginnelly
(Hospice Manager)

Assistant Director of
Nursing:
Jacinta Kelly

Consultant in
Palliative Medicine
and Clinical Lead:
Dr. Anna Cleminson

Quality and safety
Manager NWH &
CHO1
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Our current Organizational Structure
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Medical Statement

Dr. Anna Cleminson
Consultant in Palliative Medicine,
Sligo University Hospital/North West Hospice.

Reflecting back on the past year for North West Hospice patients and their families

come first to my mind. | think of the many people who have experienced and continue to experience
care from our service. | think of people younger and older, families and visitors, of sad and distressed
moments, and moments of humour and laughter, of silence, tenderness and love and peace, of moments
of discomfort and improvement and comfort. Each person comes to the service with individual ideas,
needs and wants and the North West Hospice team try and support, assist and make life easier and
fulfilling, providing this support wherever the person is based, in their own home, the hospital or a caring
environment and whatever their life limiting illness may be.

The team that brings this care consists of many specialties nurses, physiotherapists, occupational
therapists, social workers, doctors, kitchen and cleaning staff and receptionists. All their interactions
and actions contributing to the experience of our patients and families. The team also consists of
administrators, managers, fundraisers and charity shop employees who through their work enable North
West Hospice to run smoothly. This year the teamwork between all these members was impressive as
COVID 19 continued to alter working practices and reduce staff numbers through sick leave. Our staff
contemplated and contributed to working arrangements that sought safety for patients, families and
staff while remaining focused on providing care that looked after the physical social and emotional needs
of patients and their families. The teams adapted quickly to change and often at short notice swopped
shifts and worked extra hours to make sure that care was available and provided for people who needed
it.

Along with this patient and person centered work, the team continued to seek to improve our service
and the provision of palliative care locally and internationally. In 2021 a formal audit group was initiated
to assist in the organization and implementation of clinical audits. Audits took place including on
documentation of medications, a triage sheet, a spiritual assessment sheet and constipation
management and learnings from these audits have been used to alter and improve our practice.
Teaching has also been an important part of North West Hospice activity. Each week a journal club takes
place bringing up to date knowledge to clinical staff in North West Hospice. Members of our staff also
provide education on palliative care to nursing students, GP trainees, NCHDs and health care staff in
nursing homes. This year staff have also been involved in education events across the country involving
a PCOC a national patient assessment and quality improvement initiative and in the provision of teaching
to medical students in Palestine.

The return this year of volunteer activity following a pause during the pandemic has also enhanced the
service. Volunteers in North West Hospice have contributed to patient and family care, through the
provision of delicious home bakes, alternative therapies and their presence at the reception desk after
hours and during weekends. Their presence is appreciated and their willingness to come into a clinical

15
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environment as we emerge from the pandemic appreciated.

Fundraising efforts led and participated in by many people in the local community have yet again been
impressive and important. The money raised contributes directly to and affects patient care including in
the provision of staff, equipment and ambulance transfers. These activities also play an important part
in raising the profile of the hospice and letting people know about the hospice function, availability while
reducing the fears people may have.

Reflecting back on this year | would therefore like to thank all involved for their work, commitment and
contribution to the care that North West Hospice has been able to provide to people with life limiting
illnesses and their families. | would also like to thank the Hospice Manager Nuala Ginnelly and the Board
of Directors for their hard work that has provided guidance and governance throughout this period.
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Nursing Statement
Ms. Jacinta Kelly, ADON

The Nursing Team at North West Hospice aspires to provide evidence based
and efficient care to patients and their families in line with our core mission
and values as a service. Our nursing service continues to grow and develop

in response to the need and demand for specialist palliative care services
within our large catchment area.

COVID 19 and the Cyberattack in 2021 caused disruption to our services and pushed us to find
a new normal. We remember the patients who died during this pandemic and their families.
While we had to adjust to delivering care with PPE and maintaining social distancing where
possible, we learnt many lessons as a result of the pandemic. Some things that were said to me
by families and patients is that staff can communicate so much by their eyes, their presence,
their kindness, their tone and their availability, something not prevented by PPE. While these
attributes were always there pre pandemic the face mask accentuated their importance. We
ensured that any patients who required specialist palliative care received the advice and
support needed. In some cases we adjusted to providing this via Zoom or Skype.

2021 is a milestone for nursing in North West Hospice as we commenced the process for the
management of nursing services to have our own Director of Nursing. We plan to continue to
maintain and strengthen our connections with Sligo University Hospital continuing to utilize
services such as security or maintenance etc. Been the only hospice in Ireland on site of an acute
hospital is also beneficial to patients and families as transfers require no transport and we can
avail of other specialist service reviews in our in-patient unit.

Within NWH there is a dedicated 8 bedded in-patient unit, this unit has clinical nurse managers,
staff nurses, health care assistants, social workers and a vast multidisciplinary team input to
enable us to be a dedicated site. Our hospital support team includes clinical nurse specialists,
doctors and a consultant, who work on site of Sligo University Hospital. While visiting had to be
restricted during COVID we never suspended it completely as we understood the importance
of those visits for both our patients and their families at a very important time in their lives. Our
Community Palliative Care Team consists of a clinical nurse manager and clinical nurse
specialists, social worker and doctors as well as consultants. This team works closely with
patients' GP's and Public Health teams to ensure optimal care is provided to those who need
symptom control or those coming to the end of their life limiting illness who need holistic
supportive care. The collective expertise and the cohesiveness of these teams is what makes
our service unique. COVID 19 created a unique opportunity for the nursing alongside clinical
and non-clinical teams to strengthen their working relationships and develop new ways of
working and communicating.

Referrals to our service continues to increase each year and palliative care has evolved from an
end of life care only service to now been involved much earlier with patients who have both a
malignant and a non-malignant life limiting illness. Slaintecare reform is transforming how we
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deliver healthcare in Ireland, building towards equal access to services. The aim of Slaintecare
is to deliver one universal health service for all, providing the right care, in the right place and
at the right time. Within this we have to review how we deliver palliative care in these changing
times and ensure that all patients in our area have access to specialist palliative care in the place
they wish to be and at the right time in their illness.

Quality, education and support are important for us going into the future. In 2021 along with
many other Specialist Palliative Care Services in Ireland we commenced a Palliative Care
Outcomes Collaboration programme. This Australian initiative features a patient rated
assessment that captures their own perspective on the degree of their individual distress from
their symptoms. This is important as it allows us to identify the patients’ priorities in terms of
their care needs and measure the outcomes of the care we provide. | am delighted to announce
that North West Hospice will host Explorations: A National Palliative Care Conference in
October 2022. This aims to be a face to face event which will be so important for specialist
palliative care services to get the opportunity to meet again and share knowledge and learning
from within their own services.

As we look to the future we hope that we can return, albeit slowly to the way things were. We
look forward to progressing ahead with our new build alongside continuing to grow and develop
our nursing and healthcare assistant service and also continuing our relationships with CHO1
and Sligo University Hospital. We will continue to strive to deliver the best possible service to
our patients and their families, to ensure the best possible support mechanisms are in place
that provide holistic patient centered care to those we care for.

| would like to say a huge thank you to everyone who has welcomed me so warmly into this
new role. | look forward to leading the nursing and healthcare assistant service into the future
and | am very proud of all of the staff and the care they provide to patients and families within

North West Hospice.

‘In a world where you can be anything, be kind’

18
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Social Work & Bereavement Statement

Ms. Michelle O Reilly, Senior Social Worker

The Social Work Team at North West Hospice are an integral part of
the multi-disciplinary team providing a service to the In-Patient
Unit, Community Palliative Care Team and providing bereavement
Support to those whose loved one died under the care of North
West Hospice.

During 2021, the Covid 19 pandemic continued to have an unprecedented effect on the lives of
patients, their families and the wider community. Social workers supported patients and their
families in coping with the challenges of illness while recognizing that the pandemic exacerbated
psychosocial stressors within families. The impact of the pandemic has had a significant effect on
many facets of life including family communication, family contact, and caring roles and
responsibilities. Social Workers provide psychosocial and emotional support to patients and
families navigating these challenges. The Social Work Team delivers bereavement support to
families recognizing that the Covid 19 pandemic further compounded the grief and loss
experienced by families. We also offer bereavement information packs to families in accordance
with best practice for bereavement care. In 2021, the Social Work team provided support to 239
families.

Another integral part of our work is working in partnership with parents and guardians to offer
support, advice and guidance on how to prepare and support children and vulnerable adults
when a family member is ill. During the Covid 19 pandemic, we were very aware of the impact
that restrictions had on children who were facing an impending loss and those who were
bereaved. We provide age-appropriate resources, story books and material to children and their
parents/guardians. With the support of our local Tusla PPFS we provide memory boxes to
children whose parent has died under the care of North West Hospice. This has been an
important quality initiative in supporting bereaved children and young people. Children can
customize their memory boxes, making it personal and filling it with photos, letters and objects
that remind them of their experiences with their family member.

In November 2021, we held a virtual Remembrance Service in which staff from all areas of North
West Hospice participated in. It was an opportunity for family members and friends to pause
and remember their loved one through music, reflection and a candle-lighting ritual.

We are committed to Continuous Professional Development and providing education to our
colleagues and other health care professionals. In 2021 the Social Work Team participated in an
extensive Grief Education programme further enhancing our skills and the clinical tools we utilize
to promote improved bereavement outcomes in our work.

In 2021 NWH Social Work co-presented to the Masters of Social Work students on the area of

grief and loss in the Atlantic Technological University, Sligo (formerly Sligo Institute of

Technology). The Social Work Team has also participated in education and training on the
19
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Assisted Decision-Making (Capacity) Act 2015 and the implications this legislation has for
practice. The knowledge, skills and values of Social Workers are essential in supporting patients
and families, planning for the future, building capacity and establishing will and preferences. We
have contributed to feedback on the impact that Covid 19 has had on those experiencing grief
and loss which can inform service need and development. Social Workers are registered with
CORU professional body and actively participate in service development initiatives.
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Quality/ Safety/ Practice Development Report
Ms. Hazel Smullen, Quality and Safety Manager

As Deming says
“You do not install quality: you begin to work at it”

This work, the process of embedding quality and safety into the culture of North West Hospice is
an ongoing process. The challenge lies in learning to involve all team members in the work of risk
identification, risk assessment and mitigation of risks.

We review our Health and Safety Statement yearly. Each staff member is required to read this. It
is included in the Induction Booklet for all new staff. Risk identification and assessment are
integral to the completion of this document. In 2021, we began to bring the risk assessment
process to Line Managers on a quarterly basis, to learn from the ground up the actual, rather
than the perceived risks relevant to their teams. This process is inclusive of our clinical and non-
clinical settings. Feeding into this process of risk identification and assessment are the results of
quarterly health and safety audits completed in all areas of the Hospice. These audits also
highlight areas for attention and provide a roadmap for our quality improvement programme.

Those risks we cannot manage without external resources are contained on our Risk Register.
There is a robust system in place for the monthly review of this register by Quality and Safety
Manager in consultation with the Operational Management Committee. Governance and
oversight of this process currently lies with our Board Sub-Committee on Quality and Safety with
representation from the Board of Directors, North West Hospice and Health Service Executive
representatives.

Quality improvement and service development initiatives such as the formation of our Clinical
Audit Committee, ongoing PCOC (Palliative Care Outcomes Collaborative) programme
involvement and the proposed review of nursing documentation provide us with a regional and
national platform from which to highlight the teams’ commitment to the delivery of safe and
guality specialist palliative care.

We are happy to report that all comments, complaints and compliments are resolved at point of
contact while a small number are referred to the North West Hospice Complaints Officer.

There is always much to learn from our clinical incidents as we strive to work together within a
supportive culture to make visible and palpable our commitment to those at the heart of what
we do: our patients, their families and all who matter to them. Our next challenge is to begin to
consider how we can include them all in helping us to improve the quality of our service. Watch
this space!
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Volunteer Service Report
Dee Henry — Former Volunteer Coordinator

“No one is more cherished in this world than someone who lightens the
burden of another.” — Author Unknown. This is the essence of the
volunteering programme in North West Hospice. Our volunteers give of
their time and expertise free of charge and devoid of any expectation of
thanks however, our thanks we give to them in abundance. If lessons in

life are what we can take from the pandemic then surely one of them is
that human kindness and the gifting of time is something that cannot be taken for granted.

During the end of 2020 and in to 2021 the volunteering service continued with brief
interruptions when lockdowns were enforced by the government. Our inspiring volunteers
took each task asked of them, took part in new training and gave of their time and knowledge,
expertise and kindness continuously during these difficult stages. Those for whom the
pandemic was personally difficult due to their own health or that of loved one paused for
times and most came back but, for some it was a time for reflection and some decided their
service had come to an end. To those for whom this was the case, we applaud the services
you have provided for the hospice. Your dedication was appreciated and made a bigger
impact than you will possibly ever know to the service users and their families, but also to the
staff who you helped by the donation of your time.

We now move forward in to 2022 with a renewed sense of hope following a successful
vaccination programme. A new volunteer coordinator has been appointed and Cathy Quinlan
took the post in November 2021. Cathy will lead the volunteering service in to 2022 and
ensure that all of our cherished volunteers are cared for and mentored. We would like to
thank Paula Cooney for stepping in to the role temporarily while we awaited Cathy’s arrival.

All of our volunteer services are back to pre-covid status. Reception volunteers, reiki and bio-
energist practitioners, musicians, reflexology, bakers and more are all back with us in the unit.
The difference they make is incredible, bringing an energy of positivity and kindness with
them. Our volunteer drivers will hopefully make a return soon and home therapy volunteering
is a new expansion to our current volunteering roles that we hope to have in place by the end
of 2022.

May | take this opportunity to humbly acknowledge the dedication and kindness of each and
every one of our wonderful volunteers and thank them on behalf of all at North West Hospice.

22



< Annual Report | 2021

North West
Hospice

Fundraising & Communication update
Ms. Bernadette Mc Garvey, Head of Communications & Fundraising

The work of the Fundraising and Communications team at North West
Hospice is to organize North West Hospice-led events and also to support
North West Hospice supporters in the community to run their own events.
Hundreds of large and small events take place in aid of the Hospice every
year. Typically, each of these events require the following support to be ‘
provided: Advice, letters of support, Garda permits, PR, Social Media, posters, - -
attendance at events and cheque presentations.

Unfortunately, Covid-19 continued to have an impact on many of our events and campaigns across
2021, including the cancellation of our annual flag day and our North West Hospice Sunflower Days
Street collection. However, other activities performed extremely well despite ongoing restrictions.
Despite these prevailing restrictions we decided to proceed with our North West Hospice Memorial
Walk which has become a highlight of our fundraising year. This is a very special event for us and for
the many people who come to walk together to remember their loved ones. On Sunday 25 April
2021 our Virtual Memorial Walk took place! We invited the community to walk with family and
friends in adherence with government restrictions in a place with special memories and meaning
for them. We had an extraordinary response from our supporters.

Because our doors were closed to the public, our preparations for the event were very different to
previous years. All registrations for the event came in online and were processed by members of
the team who were working from home. Participants were encouraged to fundraise using online
platforms to reduce any anxiety they may have had over the spread of Covid-19. T-shirts were
packed and dispatched via post to participants by our very busy team who returned to the office to
make sure all orders were correct. We received photos from Sligo, Leitrim, Donegal and Cavan and
as far away as New York and Florida of people taking part in the Memorial Walk. These photos were
posted on North West Hospice Facebook page to celebrate and thank all our supporters who raised
€135,216 for North West Hospice.

It is clear that the world of virtual online fundraising is vital for North West Hospice and with this in
mind, members of our team have successfully completed online professional courses in Digital
Marketing ensuring our ability to adapt to the ever-changing digital world.

In 2021, €43,031 was generated from Facebook Fundraisers. Many supporters make use of
Facebook Fundraisers to celebrate their birthdays, anniversaries and other occasions in addition to
using this as a way to raise funds for or donate to North West Hospice.

Sunflower Days, our annual national Hospice street collection day had to be cancelled due to the
pandemic. We launched an appeal around the days in June asking people to make a donation to
North West Hospice raising €2,985.

We continued to appeal for online donations throughout the year and with the Fundraising Office
closed for some time and footfall greatly reduced with people working from home, online donations
were a vital income stream in 2021. We made it as easy as possible for people to make online
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donations and donate over the phone, supporting them as needed. Donations from the public
brought in €367,565 in 2021.

Hospice Coffee Morning together with Bewley’s is our biggest annual fundraiser and runs every
September. Hundreds of hosts hold an event in their home, workplace, school or parish hall to raise
funds for the Hospice. Pandemic restrictions had eased during the summer of 2021 but we still
needed to run the event in a safe manner in line with HSE Covid-19 guidelines. Under the umbrella
of “Together for Hospice: The National Hospice Movement” we worked with our colleagues in other
hospices in a collaborative approach to Coffee Morning 2021. Participants were invited to take part
safely with guidelines on ideas for Covid-19 friendly events. Some of our Coffee morning hosts
returned to in-door Coffee Mornings with many participants choosing to host virtual coffee
mornings, outdoor events and take-away Coffee Mornings raising €94,468 in total.

Every year the local communities of Sligo, Leitrim, South Donegal and West Cavan continue to hold
hundreds of events in aid of North West Hospice. Despite the pandemic the local community
continued to do this and innovated their events and ideas to work in the time of Covid-19
restrictions. Community events generated €192,364 in 2021. We are so proud of our local
community and the wonderful lengths supporters go to, to raise vital funds for North West Hospice.

One of our biggest annual community events is the Lough Gill Hospice Swim. The 2021 Lough Gill
Swim was impacted again this year by the changing restrictions imposed on public gatherings. The
Swim Committee as always showed great commitment and determination to host a pared down
event for North West Hospice raising €32,713.09 making the total funds raised by The Lough Gill
Swim in the past 2 years of the pandemic over €100,000.

North West Hospice Radio Bingo has raised €25,105 for North West Hospice in 2021 and is a vital
income stream for us. We work closely with Ocean FM in running it and have a great working
relationship and huge support from our local radio station.

Our Christmas events are a vital part of our annual fundraising and with the lifting of restrictions we
were pleased to be able to return, with the help of our fundraising volunteers to in-person sales of
our Christmas Merchandise at Johnston’s Court and at our office in Wine Street. On Sunday 5%
December we had the lighting of our Memorial Christmas Tree at Cleveragh, preceded by a
ceremony with music and poetry. We hope to develop this event in the future to become one of our
biggest annual fundraising events. The Memorial Tree Campaign raised €7,655, with Christmas
Baubles raising €2,108, both showing an increase in profit from 2020.

We increased the number of retail outlets offering our Christmas cards to include shops that already
stocked our Bingo books bringing in a total of €13,296 for Christmas card sales. We raised a total of
€23,544 from our Christmas 2021 campaign.

We are incredibly grateful to all our donors, supporters and volunteers. Despite a  continuing
global pandemic and fluctuating changes in restrictions North West Hospice raised a total of
€1,831,836 in 2021 exceeding our target of €1.09 million.

On behalf of all those who use North West Hospice services, their families and friends, we would
like to extend a heartfelt thanks to all our loyal supporters. Our generous local community continue

to be at the heart of all that we do at North West Hospice.
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Thanks to their continued support, we can continue to provide palliative care services free-of-charge
to all in our community who need it.
Together, we make a difference.
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Charity Shop Update

Ms. Mary Forte Commercial Manager

Three words. Community, Community, Community

2021 Covid 19 was and remains the headline news,

But for the shop it was community

The business community

The public ... Donors / Customers

The volunteers 45 work within the shop

Sligo Leader Tus programme supporting us with 5 participants
Our paid staff

All of the above came together and added their own special input to make 2021 a hugely successful financial
year, in a year that saw us unable to open our doors to the public until May 17%, we lost four and a half
months of footfall through our doors.

But we were not idle, we were of course working away behind closed doors selling online, running a click
and collect service within the HSE/Public Health guidelines.

We continued our commitment to applying best practice as directed by the government, HSE and Public
Health. We also continued to put a lot of work into making the shop as safe as possible for both customers
and staff and volunteers by updating Covid 19 policies and procedures in line with best practice and
improving existing measures which included installing screens at checkouts, hand sanitizer at entrance and
exit, sanitizing rotas, cashless payments, restricting numbers of customers in shop at any one time.

The result of all that team work saw our turnover increased by over 40% on 2020 figures or an increase of
over 26% on 2019 figures, our last full year of trading pre pandemic. Extremely impressive figures for any
business especially considering the times we are in.

Sadly we had to close our Carrick on Shannon shop due to circumstances beyond our control, this was both
a loss to the Hospice but also very importantly a loss to our wonderful volunteers who worked there, but
in great volunteer style they still support us by helping us with fundraising campaigns Sunflower and Coffee
just to mention two.

Utilizing Radio, social media, “Done Deal” all helped keep us in public view from behind closed doors and
continues to boost our profile now we are open again.

The shop ticks a lot of boxes not only a financial one. The fact that we have filled a gap in the market place
for selling second hand furniture and home wear as well as fashion, prevents a lot of these products going
to land fill which is immensely important as we are all aware now of Global warming and trying to cut down
on our carbon foot print. For all of our community who are unable to drop off to our shop directly, we have
38 clothing banks placed across Sligo, Leitrim South Donegal and West Cavan. These clothing banks also
generates revenue for the hospice.
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The shop has also allowed us to create a work environment that prides itself on generating opportunities
for minority workers, vulnerable adults, those with personal experience with the Hospice and provides work
experience placements.

Again, | would like to point out none of this would have been possible without the support of our wonderful

community who donate such wonderful furniture, clothing etc., and an amazing group of volunteers whose
attitude has let us just get on and work with what we have and make it work.
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Scorecard Quadrant

Our Patients and
Stakeholders

Strategic Plan — 2021-2023 |Progress 2021

Objectives and Activities Output

Timescale

To reaffirm our commitment to our patients and their families,
ensuring that our standards of specialist palliative care and
associated holistic support are delivered at the highest level

Progress 2021

Regularly review and evaluate the B  Three-yearly B Review/evaluation Quality & service provision meeting
provision of patient care, evaluations of of one service established with MDT representation to
incorporating the views of patients, each of our three each year assess and evaluate all aspects of the
families and healthcare main services (in- service.
professionals, to ensure its quality patient, hospital- Hospice Manager Report presented to
and appropriateness based, ar:d Board at each Board meeting.
community . . Report presented at each board meeting
paelve coe) | = Resute nctuedin | ™ by Grlr of Boar cuaity & safety
subcommittee with update on complaints/
feedback compliments/ risk register
Results of
evaluations
included in our
annual report
We will run an annual survey of our Annual survey B Annual survey and Exploring inviting a service user to Quality &
stakeholders (patients, families, results reported on reporting service provision meeting in 2022.
carers, staff, healthcare our website and Review of annual complaints/ compliments/
professionals and people in our within our published feedback and reported to Board Quality &
wider community) to help us annual report safety subcommittee and then reported to
understand people’s views on the Board
work of the Hospice and our future
priorities
We will engage with patients and We will establish B Engagement to Exploring inviting service user to

their families in order to understand
the perspectives of those who use
our services and to discuss future
priorities for North West Hospice

and implement a
mechanism for
engagement

commence by
early 2022

Quality & service provision meeting in
2022
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress
Quadrant 2021

Our Patients
and
Stakeholder
(3

To develop our pastoral care and holistic therapies

process com menced

B We will review the range of B Review and Review and B Review in progress by
spiritual support provided recommendations will recommendations by Operational Management
within North West Hospice be brought to the early 2022 Committee.(OMC)
on an inclusive basis, Board and an Implementatio
recognizing the diversity of appropriate n from early
those who use our services, implementation 2022 onwards
and make enhancements or process commenced
changes as necessary
We will review the range of Review and Review and Review in progress by
holistic therapies provided recommendations will recommendations by OMC
within North West Hospice, be brought to the early 2022
and make enhancements or Board and an Implementatio
changes as necessary appropriate n from early

implementation 2022 onwards
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Scorecard
Quadrant

Delivery of
Patient Care

Objectives and Activities

Output

Timescale

Progress in 2021

To increase the size of our inpatient unit and to redevelop the physical infrastructure of the
Hospice in line with best practice in palliative care

B HIGH PRIORITY: We will
complete our capital
redevelopment programme, in
collaboration with the HSE

B Capital redevelopment

complete, and new building
open / all services up and
running

B Dependent on HSE funding
and approvals; scheduled for
Q4 2021 to commence
construction

B Final design stage
Completed in Dec 2021.
To progress to tender in
Mid 2022 pending HSE
approval
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities

Ot

Timescale

Progress im 2021

Quadrant
D?"UEW To provide a palliative care service in all areas of our work — within our in-
o . patient unit, within Sligo University Hospital, and within our commumnity
{P:ahe nt palliative care teams — which iz in line with international best practice
are
m We will deliver palliative care m  Service Plan to be agreed with m  Final sign-off by end of O2 m  Completed
services in line with the annual the HSE and sigmed off by amnually
Service Plan agreed with the HSE both parties
m We will ensure that we are . We will aim fo have a dedicated m Confirmed by end of 3 2021 m  Completed
appropriately resourced with Crirector of Mursing in position on a
senior clinical staff, to reflect our full- time, dedicated basis
growing caseload and complexity m e will aim to have full-time m  Confirmed by end of Q3 2021 |Unsuccessful
of work pharmacy cover in place within the Recruitment campaign
Hospice To ba re-adwertised in
Early 2022
m We will examine best practice in m  Full compliance with “Towards m Selif-assessment complete m  Directed by
palliative care within each of our Excellence in Palliative Care Self- by end of 2021 Mational Enablement
care setfings as part of on-going Assezsment tool” against the Grou
Cruality and Safety / Training and “Mational Standards for Safer _|:|-.
Education initiatives Better Healthcare™, 2014 Cruality & safety
Commitiee continues
to self-assess
performance amd
compliance to the
standards
m  Agreed CQuality lmprovement | Quality Improvement plans m  Further gquality
recommendations from selif- for all three care setfings
assessment brought to the Morth will be progressed amd Improvemsnt plans
West Hospice executive and completed Q2 2021 Identified in 2021
Board, and prioritized as and progressed.
appropriate m  On-going self-assessment to
continue to monitor progress
Process in place
Wia Awudit group
B Sernvice improvements will e . Annual: Included in Annuwal Report to Board
reported im our Annual Report Report &2 2021 Quality & safety sub
Commities
m We will continue fo work in close m  Partnership working and service m  Annual: Included in Annwal m  Report fo
partnership with our colleagues in integration will be specifically Report G2 2021 Board Quality & safety
Sligo University Hospital, and with reported im our Annual Repori Subcommities
GPs, nurses and ofher health
professionals across the Morih m We will lock at how we can work
West to ensure that we provide a with nursing homes and
highly integrated service across all providers of services to the
aspects of care and all cars elderky
pathways
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Scorecard
Quadrant

Objectives and Activities

Output

Timescale

Progress in 2021

Delivery of
Patient Care

5 To explore how the provision of care by the Hospice will change following Covid-19

m  We will consider the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic in
terms of identifying and
categorizing future risks and
recovery plans

B Detailed risk assessment and
future disaster recovery plans

B End of 2021

®  Completed

Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in 2021
Quadrant
Learning To consider new opportunities to develop our services and capacity to fulfil our mission
gnd th and vision, either individually or in partnership with other organizations
row

m We wil liaise with other
organizations providing services
which are relevant or
complementary to palliative care

B Engagement with other service

providers, and signing of

Memoranda of Understanding in
relation to complementary work

/ joint projects,
e.g. with nursing homes

B On-going over life of
strategy

® On going

m  We will further develop
relationships with key decision-
makers in relation to services
which North West Hospice can
offer

B Regular engagement and six-
monthly “strategic contact”

report by the Hospice Manager

to the North West Hospice
Board

B Annual: report to the
Board

B Ongoing and report to
the Board on any
developments
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in 2021
Quadrant
Learning To cherish and develop our staff and volunteers so that they can continue to provide the
(a3nd th highest levels of compassionate care to patients and their families

row

B We will enhance the

training and development
of Board directors,
management, staff and
volunteers

education as an essential
component of our activity

We will continue to focus on

B Education, Training and
Development Plan

B Annual submission to
North West Hospice
Board for approval by end
Q4 in each year

Funding in place to
Support staff and
Board

training

Hospice staff

Safe and supportive working
environment for North West

B Staff feedback mechanism

B To be implemented by
end Q1 2021 and on-
going over life of plan

Staff well being
Committee in place
and funding
secured in budget

‘22




Annual Report | 2021

A
North West

Hospice
Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in 2021
Quadrant
Financial To ensure the financial sustainability of North West Hospice as an organization
and and of its services to people with life-limiting illness
Corporate
Manageme In order to focus on the B Annual breakeven review B Q3/ Q4 of each ® Completed
nt sustainability of North West of each activity area, and year, in line with

Hospice as a whole, we will
assess the breakeven position
of each of our main activities on
an annual basis

Increase statutory funding to
cover core clinical costs to
reduce reliance on fundraising
as per “The HSE 3 Year
Development Framework for
Palliative Care (2017-2019)”

reports to the North West
Hospice Board

annual business
planning process

So that we may ensure our
future financial sustainability,
diversify our income streams
and establish new revenue
sources, we will develop an
Fundraising Plan for approval
by the Board

We will look at how we can use
social media as an effective
way to raise our profile and
attract new fundraising
opportunities.

A grant has been secured for a
new website and we will look at
how this website can be most
effectively set up to promote
income generation, such as an
online element for the shop

B Fundraising Plan with clear
revenue targets from each of
our identified activity areas,
including assessment of how
technology may be
harnessed to meet these
objectives

B Sign-off of Fundraising
Plan by North West
Hospice Board no later
than end of Q1 2021,
and each succeeding
year on an annual basis
(ideally by end Q3 in
succeeding years).

Hm Completed
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in
Quadrant 2021
!=|nanc To ensure the organization is governed and managed in accordance with best practice and
'é" and in compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements
orpor
ate P We will work on the development of a B Board succession plan to be H  Annual Completed
M succession plan for the Board to ensure drafted and discussed annually Board
e;:z? continuity and the managed replacement of Development
Board members reaching the end of their subcommittee
term of office
We will continue to strengthen the Board B New Board members to be added | @ On-going Completed in
and our governance arrangements, as current members reach the 2021
including introducing new Board members end of their terms of office, and
with skill sets and experience which can Board makeup to be kept under
add real value review
We will continue to fully comply with the B Quarterly compliance report to B Quarterly Completed
regulatory arrangements for charities North West Hospice Board by
Hospice Manager
We will continue to monitor new and existing | B Ensure understanding and | ® Annual Completed
policies within healthcare and how they will compliance with the Safeguarding
affect the service we provide. Policy within the Hospice
B Review the effects of a potential
new Assisted Decision-Making
Policy on the service provided by
the Hospice
We will be transparent and open regarding B Annual report detailing our H  Annual Completed
how money is spent within North West income and expenditure, in line
Hospice with best practice and regulatory
standards for charities
We will maintain our formal risk B Formal Risk Register B Quarterly Completed
register and update it monthly presented quarterly to NWH
Board and HSE CHO1
We will look to advance our excellent B Annual review of the Service ®  Annual Completed

working relationship with the HSE

Level Agreement
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in 2021
Quadrant
FIr:janCIaI To develop our organizational structure, resources and capacity in order to enable North
an West Hospice to deliver all aspects of our strategic plan over the next three years
Corporate
Matnagem B Recognizing that our B Report and recommendations to | @ New positions in B Completed
en

organizational structure has
current capacity constraints, we
will strengthen our executive
and administrative structure

/ resources by making targeted
changes and additions to our
structure

North West Hospice Board

New positions in place via
formal recruitment process

place in line with
recommended
timescales

We will ensure that our
organization has effective
reporting, internal control and
accounting systems

Review and reports on the
systems of internal control,
reporting and accounting to
ensure that they are sufficient
to support North West Hospice
to the best standards

Initial report by
end of Q2 2021
followed by a bi-
annual review

®m Completed

Using the scorecard presented
in this strategic plan, we will
develop performance
management arrangements to
help us monitor and report
progress and achievement
against targets

Agree performance
management targets and
reporting mechanism

Reporting of achievement
against targets

Board agreement by end
of Q12021

Monthly (internal);
Annually (external
reporting)

Progress update for
Annual report

Progress update via
Hospice Manager report
To Board at each Board
meeting
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Scorecard Objectives and Activities Output Timescale Progress in 2021
Quadrant
Financial and
Corporat To review the enhancement of corporate information both in the office and in clinical care
e activities
Managem m  We will look at technologies B Review how reports which are B End of Q3 2021 B Hardware upgrade
ent and digital solutions to currently recorded manually

improve how we provide our
service.

might be recorded digitally.

Ensure our staffs have
functional, appropriate
technology in order
effectively perform their
duties.

Review how clinical information
and clinical process could be
digitalized to help improve staff
workload.

Upgrading of our IT
hardware and software

Complete

Further work to be
Progressed in 2022
To digitalize
Clinical information.
IT Lead in post

Develop management
information system for
strategic decision-making

Improved data collection
mechanisms identified and
developed that can improve
delivery or affect services

B End of Q4 2021

B Further work
required to
Complete in 2022

Improve the digital skills of our
staff

Provide training to all staff on
the use of IT systems to
ensure their most effective use

B End of Q4 2021

B Completed in 2021,
Further training planned
in 2022
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the
tompany for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

North West Hospice Company Limited by Guarantee {“the Company”} is a public benefit
entity which is a not-for-profit organisation. The Company does not have a share capital and
the lability of members is limited to €1.27.

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors and its Memorandum of Assoclation
sets out the objects and powers of the charity.

The Company has been granted charitable tax status under Sections 207 and 208 of the
Taxes Consofidation Act 1997, Charity No CHY 7983 and is registered with the Charitles
Regulatory Authority.

The Company’s objectives and principal activities are to provide 2 Speciatist Palliative Care
service to persons suffering from life limiting illness. The services are offered free of charge.
it provides this service through a Home Care service, an Inpatient Unit and Bereavement
Support services. The Company is funded by the Health Service Executive (HSE) and also
generatas fundraised income from various sources including donations, managed events,
and lts charity shops. it also funds and conducts education and research projects in
accordance with the Articles of the Company. Our integrated service is provided through:

Our 8-bed Inpatient Unit — this Unit has eight beds {three single rooms and a five-bed area)
where peaple are cared for by a multl-disciplinary team for a range of reasons such as
symptom control, respite, as well as end-of-life care. During the COVID pandemic, infection
Prevention Control advised to reduce our bed compliment to 7 beds to facilitate adherence
ta COVID social distancing regulation. This bed compliment has continued throughout 2021,
Our teem includes specialist pallistive consultants, medical, nursing, social work,
occupational therapy and physiotherapy staff. We also provide pastoral care,
complimentary therapies, and a wide range of volunteer services. 174 patients were
admitted during 2021. A naw Inpatient Unit with 12 single beds is due to begin development
as part of the MSE Capital Development plan.

Our Community Palliative Care Team working across the North-West - we visit patients in
their own homes or other care settings such as nursing homaes or community hospitals. This
team of Clinical Nurse Specialists, a social worker and a doctor work very closely with the
patient’s GP and Public Health Nurse to provide care to the patient. During 2021 the
homecare team provided care and support to 412 patients.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Our Hospital Palliative Care Team based in Sligo University Hospital - provides palllative care
to patients at Sligo University Hospital and their families and provides support to the
hospital's medical and nursing teams, The Team provides a seamless link in the flow of care
between the hospital, the hospice in-Patient Unit and Community Palliative Care, assisting
patients and thelr families to make the most approprigte decisions according to their
individual care needs. 654 patients were cared for by the Hospital Palliative care team in
2021,

Our 3ocial Work service ~ Social workers are an integral part of the palliative care
multidiscipinary team. The team provides psychosocial and emotional suppart to patients
and their families who are recelving palliative care service at home or In the inpatient unit,
The social work team also provides a bereavement support and advice to those whose loved
one died under the care of North West Hosplce.

Our Speclalist Education Support service ~ we recognise the importance of ensuring the
continuous professional development of our staff, and our activities include monthly
education sessions for staff, learning and sharing from practical examples of clinical practice,
and the development of policies, procedures and guidelines related to service quality.

Our Volunteer Programme — our volunteers provide essential support in areas such as
reception cover, holistic care (massage, music, reflexclogy, etc.), driving, fundraising, charity
shop assistants and other activities.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN PERIOD, POSITION AT YEAR END

The Company recorded an overall surplus of £1,694,189 for the financial year ta 31
December 2021 (2020: Surplus €1,023,112), North West Hospice gratefully acknowledges
the core support from the HSE that is essential for the provision of services, Income was also
raised through a wide range of fundraising events, charity shops and bequests which totalled
€2,080,014 iri the current year (2020: €1,357,266).

Staff costs in 2021 amounted to €2,106,708 {2020 €2,112,008) from a total expenditure of
€2,647,136 (2020: €2,418,578). The Hospice Manager's salary was paid directly by the HSE
and reflected In the Service Arrangemaent. Fundraising costs were €539,293, {(2020:
€280,612) and governance costs were €30,239 {2020: €19,768). The major Increase In
fundraising costs in 2021 is attributable to Radio Bingo operations brought in house during
the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In early 2022 the HSE advised that the North West Hosplce s included in the HSE Capital
Programme and that they have been granted a capital allocation in 2022.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

RESERVES POLICY

The key principle is that our reserves should be sufficient to manage a severe situation in
which our cash inflows significantly fail to meet our cash outflows. In such a "worst case”
scenario, the reserves can be drawn upon to meet operating cash shortfalls. In addition to
this, any additional cash available is primarily held to meet service development and future

capital expenditure requirements as Identified from time to time.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Strategic Plan 2021-2023

The Hespice launched a new strategic plan in 2021 which covers the period from 2021 to 2023
and it sets out the vision of the directors, management, and staff for providing high quality
and safe services for all our service users and developing those services in line with hest

national and international practice. The plan has the following these key facus areas:

I

10

11

To reaffirm our commitment to our patients ond their families, ensuring that
our standards of specialist palliotive care ond associated holistic support are
delivered at the highest level

To develop our pastoral care and halistic therapies.

Te increase the size of our inpatient unit and to redevelop the physical
infrastructure of the Hospice in line with best practice in polfiative care

Ta provide a palliative core service in all areos of our work ~ within our in-
patient unit, within Sligo University Haspital, and within our community
palliative care teoms which is in line with national and internationgt best
practice

To explore how the proviston of cure provided by the Hospice will change
Jollowing Covid-18

To consider new opportunities to develop our services and capacity to fulfil
our mission and vision, efther individually or in portnership with other
organisations

To cherish and develop our stoff and volunteers so that they can continue to
provide the highest levels of compassionate care to patients and thelr families
To ensure the financigl sustginability of North West Hospice os on
arganisation and of its services to people with life-limiting iliness

To ensure the organisation is governed and managed In uccordance with best
practice ond in compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements

Ta develop our organisational structure, resources, ond capacity to enable
North West Hospice to deliver all aspects of our strategic plan over the next
three years

To review the enhancement of corporate information both in the office and in
clinfeal care activities,

Qur annual operational plans detail the specific actions that we will take to meet
these strategic objectives.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DEVELOPIMENT PLANS

it is anticipated that works {enabling works) for the new inpatient unit will
commence in the latter half of 2022 with the main works commencing thereafter
following completion of tendering process. This will require the decanting of the
clinical staff to the proposed offices on the Mall.

STRUCTURE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

The directors are responsible for the managerment of the business of the Hospice and
for exercising thelr powers in pursuit of the charitable objects of the Hospice. The
directors are committed to maintaining the highest standards of Corporate
Governance and they belleve that this |s a key element in ensuring the proper
operation of the Haspices activities.

The Board is responsible for providing leadership, setting strategy, and ensuring
control. There were 15 non- executive directors during the year. The Boards non-
executive directors are drawn from diverse backgrounds and bring their expertise
and decision-making skills to the Board deliberations.

The Hospice has 3 comprehensive process for reporting management information to
the Board. The Board is provided with regular information for all aspects of the
organisstion,

To support their governance activities the Board has established several Commitiees
who report directly to the Board. £ach Committee has its own terms of reference.

The committees of the Board are:

o Board Development subcommittes
Human Resource subcommittee
Finance and Audit subcommittee
Clizality and Safety subcommittee
IT Systems and Hardware Subcommittee

* 9 & &

The senior management team is made up of
» Hospice Manager - Nuala Ginnelly
Clinical Lead - Dr, Anna Cleminson
Diractor of Nursing - Marion Ryder
Assistant Director of Nursing - Jacinta Kelly
Head of Finance - Geargina Meghan
Head of Communications/Fundraising - Bernadette McGarvey
Commercial Manager - Mary Forte

q % = # =» @
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
DIRECTORS” REPORT

STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS

The Hospice could not function and provide the level of care and support to patients
and families without the heip of the Staff and Volunteers. The directors wish to
express their thanks to all Staff and Volunteers for the excellent care that they
provide,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The directors together with the senior management team follow a process to manage
risks to which the Haspice is exposed. They particularty concern themselves with
operational and financial risks. They are satisfied that appropriate systems are in
place to mitigate against their risks and limit exposure. The principal risks facing The
North West Hospice Company Limited by Guarantee are:

Clinical Risks to patients under our core either as inpatients or in their home
environment: These risks are mitigated by the use of appropriately qualified and
trained clinical staff, working within safe systems of care, having appropriate
equipment which reduces risk, having appropriate policies and procedures In place
and our incident reporting system which includes reporting near misses so that
future incidents can be prevented.

Covid 19: The Hospice continues to engage with the HSE infection control and
continues to take precautions to prevent and mitigate an outbreak of the virus by
continuing to follow best practice and COVID regulations. Access to the hospice
building has continued to be restricted, in 2021 a number of face to face fundraising
events were cancelled due to COVID 19, However the volunteer programme has
gradually returried since mid-2021. The public continues to support fundralsing
threugh virtual events and individual donations for which we are very grateful,

Failure to comply with Statutaory/Regulatory Requirements: The Hospice is subject
to stringent regulations across all aspects of ity activities and has appropriate
processes in place to monitor adherence and compliance with legislation and
regulations impacting its operations

General Date Protection Regulation: North West Hospice continue to implement
GDPR regulations to achieve compliance. Risk assessments and risk minimisation
actions are put in place in the areas of non- complisnce. At the Board meetings, the
Board is advised on these matters and all risks, as identified in the risk register via
the Board's Quality and Safety Sub-Committee Chairperson,

Financial Dependency on the HSE: The Hospice is dependent on the ongoing support
of the HSE for funding to deliver core services. This risk is mitigated by developing
ongoing relationships with the HSE and agreeing annually our Service Arrangement.
This has been further mitigated by the welcome increase in recurring annual funding
that is provided under our Service Arrangement.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
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Insufficient Funding for future Capital Developments: The new state of the art hospice
facility is to be funded by HSE Capital Estates and is formally identified on the HSE
capital plan. There Is a risk that the funding given may not be sufficient to complete
the project with rising costs and supply issugs post Brexit and Covid Pandemic.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The names of the individuals who were directors at any time during the year ended
31st Decernber 2021 are set out below. All directors served for the entire year unless
otherwise stated.

Board Director Attendance
Patrick Dolan (Choirperson) 5/5
Slobhan O'Dowd {Vice Choirperson) 4/5
Noel Scott (Secretary) 5/5
Shane Ward (Treasurer) 8/5
lames Callaghan [Retired 2" December 2021) 5/%
Mary Curran 5/5
Georges Chadda 5/5
Hubert McHugh 545
Aliling Barry {Retired 2™ Decernber 2021} 4/5
Daclan Hegarty 3/5
Dr, Fiona Quinn 3/5
John McEthinney 475
Daniel Browne 4%
Susanna Kering 4%
Nogl Melaughiin (Joined 29th Aprit 2021) 4/4

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY AND THEIR INTERESTS

There were no contracts or arrangements of any significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the directors or secretary of the Company had any
interest,

GOING CONCERN

The directors have reviewed the company's financial projections and with the
continued support of the HSE have 2 reasonable expectation that the company
resources are adequate to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future, Thus, they continue to adopt the golng concern basis in preparing the annual
financial statements.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in
note 3 ta the financial statements.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
PIRECTORS’ REPORT

PAYMIENT OF CREDITORS
The directors acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
provisions of the EC (Late Payment in Commercial Transactions} Regulations

2012. 1t is the Company’s policy to agree payment terms with all suppliers and to
adhere to those payment terms.

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
There were no political contributions made by the Company during the financial year.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The measures that the directors have taken to secure compllance with the requirements of
sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2014 regarding the keeping of accounting records,
are the employment of appropriately quafified accounting personnel and the maintenance
of computerised accounting systems. The Company’s accounting records are maintained at
the Company’s registered fundraising and finance office at Hosplce Centre, Adelaide
Bullding, Wine Street Car Park, Shigo.

STANDARDS

The directars are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, On 1%
July 2021 tha charity declared to the Charities Regulator that it is in full compliance with the
Charities Governance Code. The board prepares an annual report and financial statements

in full compliance with the Charities SORP {Statement of Reporting Practice under FR5102)
and made available to the public on our website,

STATEMENT ON RELEVANT AUDIT INFORMATION

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time of this report i$ approvad
in accordance with section 332 of the Companies Act 2014:

{a) 50 far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
company’s statutory auditors are unaware, and

{b} each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in
order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant sudit information and to
establish that the company's statutory auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS

Inaccordance with Section 383(2) of tha Companles Act 2014, the auditors, Gilroy Gannon,

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm express their willingness to continue in
pffice,

This report was approved by the board of directors an 9% June 2022 and signed an behalf
of the board by:

AR ok

Director Director
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GLIARANTEE
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors report and the financial statements
in accordance with Irish law and regulations.

irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under the law, the directors have elected to prepare the financlal statements in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Under
company faw, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of
the company as at the financial year end date and of the surplus or daficit of the company for
the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014,

In preparing these financial statemeants, the directors are required to:

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

— make jJudgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

— State whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, identify those standards, and note the effect and the
reasans for any material departure from those standards; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the company will continue in business,

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the company keeps or causes to be kept
adequate accounting records which correctly explain and record the transactions of the
company, enable at any time the assets, Habilities, financial position and surplus or deficit of
the company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and directors report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable
the financial statements to be audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other jrregularities,

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company's website. Legislation in Ireland governing the
preparation and dissemination of financlal statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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Gitroy Giannon, Chartered Actountants and Registered Auditors, Stephen Sireet, Shye
T+36A 71 GV A7 {F 4353 71 81 432 B3 | E: infofgilroygannon.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of North West Hospice Company Limited by
Guarantee (the 'company’} for the year ended 31st December 2021, which comprise the
Statement of Financial Activities, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash
Flow and notes to the financial statements, including the summaty of significant accounting
policies set out in note 3. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 "Tha Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Repubtic of freland".

In our opinlon the financial statements:
~ give a true and fair view of the assets, lisbilities and financial position of the company
as at 31* December 2021 and of its surplus for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
~ have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2014.

Busis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ireland)
(I5As {Ireland)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements section of
tur report. We are independent of the company in accordance with ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audlt of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard
issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We belleve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our apinion,

We have relied on the exemption provided by the trish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory
Authority's Ethical Standard - Section & - Provisions Available for Audits of Small Entities in the
circurmstances as outlined in note 17 to the financlal statements.




INDEPENDENT AUINTOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIVIITED BY GUARANTEE

Conclusians relating to going concern
in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going

concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt an
the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors in respect of going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report therean. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated In our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with cur apdit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required ta determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materiat
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to repart that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

~ in our opinion, the information given in the directors' report is consistent with the
financial stataments; and

— I our opinion, the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

-~ We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary
for the purposes of our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financlal
statements to be readily and properly audited, and the financial statements are in agreement
with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environmant obtained in
the course of the audit, we have nat identified any material misstatements in the directors’
rgport.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, it our oplnion, the disclosures of
directors’ remuneration and transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not
made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respattive Responsibilities

Responsibilities of directors for the financiol statements

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 9, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going coneern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finoncial statements

Qur abjectives are to obtaln reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an
auditor's repart that includes aur opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As {Ireland) will always
detect 8 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of usars taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the JAASA's website at: www.laasa.ie, under "Description of auditor's responsibllities for
audit”. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our resgonsibilities

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with section
391 of the Companies Act 2014. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a
kody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

{,{“) Ty (‘;_,.:mﬁ -
Sinead McHugh
For and on behalf of
Gilroy Gannon
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Stephen Street
Sligo

Date: 8™ June 2022
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NORTH WEST HOSPRICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° DECEMBER 2021

INCOME

Charitable Activities
Dongtions & Legacies

Fundraising
Interest

Total Incomae

EXPENDITURE

Charitable Activities

Fundraising Costs
Governance Costs

Total Expenditure

Surplus for the Year

Total Funds Brought Forward

Transfer of Funds

Total Funds Carried Forward

Designated Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
Furwds Funds Funds Funcds Funds

Note € € £ £ €
2021 2020Q

4 - 184,028 2,067,032 2,261,058 2,073,275
4 470,664 31,380 403,200 905,254 387,781
4 - - 1,174,760 1,174,760 469,485
- - 253 253 11,149

470,664 225,416 3,645,245 4,341,325 3,441,690

- (106,841}  (1,970,763) (2,077,604) (2,118,198)

- {13,625) (525,668) (539,293) (280,612)

- (20,388) (9.853) (30,239} {19,788}

- {140, 852) {2,506,284) {2,647,136) (2,418,578)

470,664 84,564 1,138,961 1,694,188 1,023,112

1,155,208 46,500 2,325,864 3,527,569 2,504,457
1,042,438 - (1,042,439} - -
~R08308  ..12L064 86 3,22).758 3.527.569
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 315 DECEMBER 2021

Note
Fixed astets

Tangible assets 8
Financial assets

Current assets
Debtors g
Cash at bank and in hand

Craeditors:
due within one year i0
Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Currant Liabilities

NEY ASSETS

Funds of the Charity

Designated Funds 12
Restricted Funds 12
Unrestricted Funds 12

TOTAL CHARITY FUNDS

164,430
1,665,078

217,408
3,538,623

3,777,031

{388,781)

2021

1,R3%,508

3,388,250

5,221,758

5,221,758

2,668,308
131,064
2,427,386

5,221,758

107,115
1,668,825

124,865
2,102,605

2,227 A1)

(475,841)

2020

1,775,940

1,751,629

3,527,569

3,527,569

i e TT———

1,155,205
46,500
2,325,864

oy

3,527,568

T

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 9% June 2022 and signed on

T

behalf f the board by:
e

f)imc:tm

Director
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* DECEMBER 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Surpius for the financial year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of tangible assets

Other interest receivable and similar income
Accrued expenses/{income)

Changes In:
Trade and other debtors
Trade and other creditors

Cash generated from operations
Cash flows from invasting activities
Purchase of tangible assets
Adjustrent in tangible assets

interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

2021
£

1,694,189
44,381

{253}
616

{92,870}
(87,349)

1,558,714

{101,696)
253

(101,443)

1,457,271
3,771,430

A2 2RA0%

2020
€

1,023,112

27127
{11,149)
(124,384)

{33,590
299,137
1,180,253
{11,196
83,579

11,148

83,532

WA A

1,263,785

2,507,645

3,771,430
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

The financial statements comprising the Statement of Financlal Activities, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Cash Flow, and the related notes constitute the individual financial statements
of North West Hospice Company Limited by Guarantee for the financial vear ended 31% December 2021,
The company is registered in lreland as a private company limited by guarantee without any share capital
(CRO number 119501). fts registered office Is The Mall, Sligo which is also its principal place of business.
The nature of the company’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the directors report. The
company is a charity and has been granted charitable tax exemption (Chatity Number: CHY 7983},

The liability of each of the company's members in the event of the company belng wound up will pot
exceed €127,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, and in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice {SORP 2015) “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”, in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of ireland {FRS
102), issued by the Financial Reporting Council and the Companies Act 2014,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in sccordance with the
historical cost convention modified to Include certain items at fair value. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in thelr preparation is the Companies Act 2014 {the Act) and FRS 102
The Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland issued by the Financial
Reporting Courcil. The financial staternents have also been prepared in accordance with the formats
provided for in the Statements of Recommended Practice (SORP 2015} “Accounting and Reporting by
Charities” In accordance with FRS 102.

The financial statements are prepared in Euro, which is the functional currency of the entity.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

income

Grant income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (“SOFA") when the com pany is entitled
to the income, when any performance related conditions have been met, when receipt is probable and
the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy,

Monies receivied in respect of expenditure to be incurred in a future accounting period are accounted for
as deferred income and recognised as a liability until the required accounting perlad.

Voluntary income from beguests, donations, gifts and the proceads of fundraising activitles are
recognised as received, The value of services provided by volunteers has not been included as income,
As with many similar charitable organisations, independent groups from time to time organise
fundraising activities. However, as amounts coliected in this way are outside the control of the company,
they are not included in the financial statements until received into the company bank account.

Proceeds from the sale of donated goods are racognised as income when sold, Income from radio bingo
Is recognised as receivable and interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the
amount can be measurad raliably,

Expenditure

Expenditure Is accounted for on an accruals basis as a Hability Is incurred and reported as part of the
expenditure to which it relates. Where costs cannot be attributed to particular headings they have been
allocated 1o activities on a basis consistent with the use of the respurces,

Expenditure on generating funds is included as fundraising costs. Expenditure on charitable activities
includes all costs incurred by the charity in undertaking activities in furtherance of the objectives of the
charity including support costs,

Costs relating to governance of the charity are costs associated with its statutory requirements including
the audit fee and costs relating to the strategic management of the company.

All costs are allocated to expenditure categories reflecting the use of the resource. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.

Fund accounting

Restricted funds: These are funds which are obliged to be spent in a specific way or for a specific purpose
as set out in a funding letter of offer, or services contract, as specified by the grant maker or donor, but
which are still in the wider objectives of a charity.

Designated funds: Represent unrestricted income which have been recommended by the board of
directors for specific purposes. Conditions are attached to the designated funds. The company can
redistribute funds if these conditions are not satisfied.

Unrestricted funds: Funds which are not assigned to a specific purpose. They represent amounts which
are expendable at the discretion of the Board of Directors In furtherance of the objectives of the charity.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

Defined contribution plans

The company operates a defined contribution scheme. Retirement benefit contributions in respect of the
scheme for employees are charged to tha Statement of Financial Activities as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets are held separately from those of the company in
an independently administered fund. DIfferences between the amounts charged in the Statement of
Financial Activities and payments made to the retirement benefit scheme are trested as assets or
liabilities,

Government grants

Under Charities SORP (FRS 102) all grants including capital grants should be recognised as income in the
Statement of Financial Activities on a performance basis i.e. when the company has entitiement to the
funds, any performance related conditions attached to the granis have been mat, it is probahle that the
income wil be received, and the amount can be measured refiably.

Government grants received for capltal purposes (to acquire tangible fixed assets) are credited to
restricted funds. The amount of the grant is amortised and credited to the Statement of Financial
Activities on the same basis as the related fixed assets are depreciated.

Taxation

No charge to current or deferred taxation arises as the Company has been granted charitable status under
Sections 207 and 208 of the Taxes Consolidation Act 1997, Charity Number CHY 7983, The company is
eligible under the "Scheme for Tax Relief for Danations to Eligible Charities and Approved Bodies under
Section 84A Taxes Consolldation Act, 1997 therefore income tax refunds arising from donations
exceeding €250 per annum are included in unrestricted funds,

Yangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at historic cost. This includes legal fees, stamp duty and other
non-refundable taxes, and also any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating In the manner intended.

Depreciation

Bepreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write
off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset systematically over its expectad
useful iife, on a straight-line basis, as follows:

Improvements to leasehold premises - 10/15% per annum
Fittings fixtures and computer equipment - 15/20% per annum
Motor vehicles . 20% per annum

The residual value and useful lives of tangible assets are considered annually for indicators that these
may have changed. Where such indicators are present, a review will be carried out of the residual value,
depreciation method and useful lives, and these will be amended If necessary. Changes in depreciation
rates arising from this review are accounted for prospectively aver the remaining useful fives of the
assets.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

Financial Assets
The financlal asset relates to a deposit investmaent.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company assesses whether there is any indication that the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, resulting in an impatrment loss, Impairment
losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Activities, Where the circumstances
causing an impairment of an asset no longer apply, then the impairment is reversed through the
Statement of Financial Activities. The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets is the higher of the fair
value less costs to sell of the asset and its value In use.

Financlal instruments

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash consists of cash on hand and demand deposits, Cash equivalents consist
of short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Other financial assets: Other financial assets Including debtors and grants receivable are measured at
amartised cost less impairment, where there is objective evidence of impairment,

Other financial liabifities: Other financial liabilities, including trade creditors are initially measured at the
undiscounted amount owed o the creditor, which is normally the invoice price. Liabilities that are settled
within one year are not discounted. If payment is deferred heyond normal business terms or is financed
at a rate of interest that is not a market rate, this constitutes a financing transaction, and tha financial
liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest
for a similar debt instrument. Subsequently, other financiai labilities are measured at amortised cost.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likefihood that an outflow will be required In settlement Is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small,

Contingencies: Contingent liabilities, arising as a result of past events, are recognised when it is probable
that there will be an outflow of resources and the amount can be reliably measured at the reporting date.
Contingent lahilities are disclosed in the financlal statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources |s remaote.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* DECEMBER 2021

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The directors consider the accounting estimates and assumptions below to be Its critical accounting
estimates and judgements:

Going Concern : The directors have considered budgets for a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financia! statements which demonstrate that there is no material uncertainty
regarding the company's ability to meet its Habilities as they fall due, and to continue as a going cencern.
The company is dependent on funding from the Health Service Executive (HSE) which is underpinned by
the Service Arrangement between the HSE and the company. The Service Arrangement for 2022 has been
signed. The directors believe that the company has sufficient cash resources to sustain it for at least
twelve months fram the date of approval of the financial statements and on this basis they consider it
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. Accordingly, these financial
statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying amounts and classification of assets and
liabilities that may arise if the company was unable to continue as 2 going toncern.

Useful Lives of Tangible Fixed Assets: Long lived assets comprising primarily of Improvements to leasehold
premises, Fixtures, fittings and computer eguipment represent a significant portion of total assets, The
annual depreciation charge depends primarily on the estimated lives of each type of asset, The directors
regularly review these useful lives and change them if necessary, to reflect current conditions. in
determining their useful life the directors consider technological change, physical condition and expected
economic utilisation of the assets. Changes In the useful fives can significantly impact the depreciation
charge for the financial year, The net book value of Tangible Fixed Assets subject to depreciation at the
financial year end date was €164,430.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

INCOME

Income is attributable to the principal activity of the company which is wholly undertaken in ireland.

Charitable Activities

2021 2020
Designated Restricted  Unrestricted Total Total
€ € £ € £

Health Service Executive (note 4.1)
- Service Arrangement Core Funding - - 1,167,769 1,167,769 566,780
- Schedule 10 Funding - . 899,263 899,263 1,087,973
- Funding in response to COVID 19 - 183,100 - 183,100 6,843
Tusla Family Support Agency (note 4.2) - 10,926 - 10,926 11,674
- 194,026 2,067,032 2,261,058  2,073,27%

Donations & Legacies
2021 2020
Designated Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
€ 3 € € £
Bequests and Legacies 470,664 - - 470,664 17,660
Restricted Donations - 31,3290 . 31,390 46,500
General Donations - - 403,200 403,200 323,621
470,664 31,390 403,200 905,254 387,781
Fundraising

2011 2020
Designated Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
€ £ 3 £ £
Fundraising events - - 372,994 372,954 326,311
Radio Bingo - - 273,284 273,284 92,345
Donated goods - - 336,118 336,118 251,371
Supporters events . - 192,364 192,364 292,058
Other income - - - " 7,400
- - 1,174,760 1,174,760 969,485

The company is funded by over 50% exchequer funding,
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° DECEMBER 2021

4.1  Health Service Executive (HSE)
Service Arrangement Core Funding: HSE provides funding to North West Hosplee Company Limited by
Guarantee in line with Saction 39 Service Arrangement for palliative care services to those with life
limiting illness in Sligo, Leitrim, South Donegal and West Cavan towards the cost of services provided.
This funding is allocated to salary costs of its inpatient unit, community palliative care, hospital
paliiative care team, bereavement service and multi-disciplinary team. Funds are recognised in the

year to which the income relates, Funds receivable at year end are included in income and debtors at
yeur end,

Schedule 10 Funding: During the year the company received COVID 19 Sustainability funding of
£879,055,

Funding in response to COVID 18 in December 2020 funding of €350,000 was received in response to
COVID 12 of which €183,100 has been allocated to the Statement of Financial Activities in the year
ended 31* December 2021. Deferred funding of €160,057 is recognised In creditors at year end.

HSE Funding awarded for the year ended 31st December was as follows:

2021 2020
€ €
Pravision of palliative care services 1,197,235 966,780
Schedule 16 Funding
National sustainability funding - 367,978
Natlonal agreed funding for Voluntary Hospice Group
in response to COVID 18 - 720,000
COVID 18 sustainabllity funding 879,055 -
Pay Restoration 20,208 .
Adjustments for posts paid by HSE (29,466) -
Additional funding in responses to COVID-19 - 350,000

2,067,082 1.4114,758

HSE funding recognised as income in the year:

g €

Funding received in the year
- Provision of palliative care services 1,130,375 966,780
- Schedule 10 899,263 1,047,973
- Additional funding in response to COVID 19 - 340,000
Funding due at year end 47,394 58,339
Funding received in year in relation to prior year (10,000)  (48,339)
Funding recelved in year not expended at year end- Deferred Income - (343,157)
Deferred income released towards revenue expenditure 111,082 -
Deferred Income released towards capital expenditure 72,018 "

2,250,132 2,061,601

4.2 Tulsa Family Support Agency
Inthe year ended 31* December 2021, Tusla Family Support Agency provided funding of €10,926 towards
# social worker and social work supplies.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

5. SURPLUS ON THE PROVISION QF SERVICES

Surplus on the provision of services is stated ofter (crediting)/charging:

2021 2020
E €
Depreciation of tangible assets 44,381 27,127

6. STAFF CO5T5

The average number of persons employed by the company during the financial year was as follows:

2021 2020
Number Number
Administrative staff 6 6
Healthcare staff 45 43
21 A9

The aggregate payroll costs, net of recharges, during the financial year were:
2021 2020
€ £
Payroli costs 1,779,578 1,809,925
Social insurance costs 207,333 201,958
Other retirement benefit costs 119,797 110,125

2,106,708 2,122,008

The key management are the Board of Directors and the Hospice Manager. The directors provided
their services on a voluntary basis and did not receive any fees or remuneration during the year ended
31st December 2021,

The Hospice Manager's remuneration was paid by the HSE and reflected in the Service Arrangement.

The number of employees whose total employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and
employer PRSI} for the reporting period fell within each band of €10,000 from €60,000 upwards are
set out below.

Employee numbers

Bands 2021 2020
£60,000 - €70,000 3 2
£70,000 - €80,000 i .

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The amount recognised in the income and expenditure account in relation to defined contribution plans
was €119,797 (2020; €110,125).
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fiutuires,
Improvements to  fittings, and

Leasehold  computer Motor
Premises egquipment Vehicles Total
£ € £ €
Cost
At 1st January 2021 BG8, 642 208,048 89,225 1,176,315
Additions ‘ . 85,296 16,400 101,696
At 315t Decembar 2021, 268,642 384,244 25625 13278511
Depreciation
At 1st lanuary 2021 795,380 270,630 3,690 1,069,700
Charge for the financial year 10,337 28,918 5,125 44,381
At 31st December 2021 805,717 299,549 8,815 1,114,081
Carrying amount
At 31st Decamber 2021 02,925 84,685 16,810 164,430
At 31t December 2020 73,262 28,318 5,535 107,115
The basts by which depreciation is calculated is stated in Note 8.
DEBTORS
2021 2020
£ £
Dabtors 61,215 13,502
Grants receivable 55,735 52,319
Prepayments 60,460 53,024
217,408 124,865
CREDITORS: DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2021 2020
€ €
Trade creditory 13,608 3,85%
Tax snd social insurance: PAYE and social welfare 54,716 47,501
Accruals 180,400 31,330
Beferred income (Note 11) 160,057 343,157
388,781 475 841
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% DECEMBER 2021

DEFERRED INCOME

A HSE grant of €350,000 was received in December 2020 in response to COVID 19 for expenditure
committed by the company. An amount of £183,100 was spent in the year ended 31% December 2021
(€6,843 in the year ended 31% December 2020) with the remaining €160,057 to be incurred.

2021 2020
Deferred Income € €
As at the start of the financial year 343,157 .
Funding received - 350,000
Released to Statement of Financial Activities (183,100) (6,843)
As at the end of the financial year 160,057 343,157
FUNDS
Analysis of movements in funds
As at Net  Transfers As at
1 January income/ between 31 December
2021 Expenditure Funds 2021
€ £ £ €
Designated Funds 1,155,205 470,664 1,042,439 2,668,308
Restricted Funds ,
HSE Capital Grants - 57,615 - 57,61%
Donations — New Build 40,000 30,440 - 70,440
Donations - Memarial Garden 6,500 (3,491) - 2,009
M46,500 84,564 - 131,064
Unrestricted Funds 2,325,864 1,138,961 (1,042,439) 2,422,386
Total Funds 769 1,894,189 _____- 2,221,758

Designated Funds of €2,668,308 at 31% December 2021 are designated towards service development
to include the provision of chaplaincy and pharmacy services together with therapies to include art
therapy and decant costs during the building of the new Hospice,

Restricted funds are restricted to a particular purpose as outlined above.

The unrestricted funds represent the funds which are nat designated for particular purposes but for
the wider objectives of the charity. These funds are available to ensure there is enough working capital
to provide continuity of service in the event of cash shortfalls due to a reduction in fundraised income
or @ windup. During the year ended 31% December 2021 the Board transferred the surpius on
fundraising to designated funds.
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t DECEMBER 2021

Analysis of net assets by fund

Analysis of net assets by fund at 31* Decernber 2021;

Desipnated]  Restricted  Unrastricted Total

Funds Funds Funds fFunds

13 £ £ £

Fixed Assats 1,665,078 57,615 106,815 1,833,508
Current Assets 999,230 233,506 2,544,295 3,777.031
Creditors: due within one year - {160,057) (228,724) (388,781)
2008308 131064 2.442.386 5223758

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The analysis of the carrying amounts of the financial instruments required under Section 13 of FRS 102 is

as follows:

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Financial assets

Debtors

Grants receivable

Cash at bank and in hand

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors
Accruals

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2021 2020

€ €
1,668,078 - 1668825
61,215 13,502
9,733 38,338
3,559,623 2,102,608
5,383,649 3,843,271
2021 2020
€ €

23,608 3,853
150,400 81,330
174,008 85,183

The board has approved €250,000 for the decant of clinical staff during the capital build in 2022,

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In early 2022 the HSE advised that the North West Hospice is included in the HSE Capltal Programme and

that they have been granted a capital allocation in 2022,
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NORTH WEST HOSPICE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company did not entar into any related party transactions in the current or prior year.

17. ETHICAL STANDARD

In common with many other businesses of our size and nature our Auditors assist with the preparation
of the Statutory Financial Statements.

18.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The board of directors approved these financial statements for issue on 9% June 2022,
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